
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

7:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 17, 2018 Draft Planning Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_SEPT2018_PAC_WATTACHMENTS.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Kennel
Request for a CUP submitted by Alexander Ryan (owner) to establish a dog Kennel and associated 
training facility for up to 24 dogs. Parcel 34.221.0020. TBD Flower Valley RD Red Wing, MN 55066. Part 
of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Sect 01 and the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay 
Creek Township. A2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_RYAN_OCT2018.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Non-Agricultural Use Associated With Agri-Tourism (Wedding 
Event Center) 

Request for a CUP submitted by Kevin Riester (owner) to establish a Wedding Barn Event Center with a 
proposed maximum occupancy of 300 guests. Parcel 34.002.0900. 29065 Flower Valley RD Red Wing, 
MN 55066. Part of the E½ of the SW ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A2 Zoned 

District.  

PACPACKET_RIESTER_OCT2018_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: To Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates 
“Housekeeping” updates throughout ordinance to remove typographical errors, correct inaccurate 
references, remove redundant language, and improve language consistency.  
Amend Articles 21 -24 (District Regulations) to consolidate permitted and conditionally permitted uses 
into a single “ table of uses” to improve ease of use, remove redundant language, and facilitate future 
ordinance revisions. 

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS_OCT2018.PDF

Other-Discussion

Staff Updates

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:



Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

7:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 17, 2018 Draft Planning Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_SEPT2018_PAC_WATTACHMENTS.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Kennel
Request for a CUP submitted by Alexander Ryan (owner) to establish a dog Kennel and associated 
training facility for up to 24 dogs. Parcel 34.221.0020. TBD Flower Valley RD Red Wing, MN 55066. Part 
of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Sect 01 and the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay 
Creek Township. A2 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_RYAN_OCT2018.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Non-Agricultural Use Associated With Agri-Tourism (Wedding 
Event Center) 

Request for a CUP submitted by Kevin Riester (owner) to establish a Wedding Barn Event Center with a 
proposed maximum occupancy of 300 guests. Parcel 34.002.0900. 29065 Flower Valley RD Red Wing, 
MN 55066. Part of the E½ of the SW ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A2 Zoned 

District.  

PACPACKET_RIESTER_OCT2018_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: To Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates 
“Housekeeping” updates throughout ordinance to remove typographical errors, correct inaccurate 
references, remove redundant language, and improve language consistency.  
Amend Articles 21 -24 (District Regulations) to consolidate permitted and conditionally permitted uses 
into a single “ table of uses” to improve ease of use, remove redundant language, and facilitate future 
ordinance revisions. 

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS_OCT2018.PDF

Other-Discussion

Staff Updates

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/b598cc1f-4ed5-46d9-b3fb-c2236488cd91


Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Board Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Len Feuling, Tom Drazkowski, Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, 
Sarah Pettit, Barney Nesseth, Tom Gale, Howard Stenerson, and Marc Huneke 

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistants Ryan Bechel and Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Feuling; seconded by Commissioner Pettit to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Feuling; seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Nesseth reported he had a conversation with the solar company that is 
documented in the emails.  And also spoke with the MPCA about their current guidelines.   

New member on the board tonight.  

Lisa Hanni re-introduces Howard Stenerson.  

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by USS Greenhouse Solar LLC (applicant) and Joel and Nancy 
Flemke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10 acres. Parcel 39.019.0500. TBD 180th Ave, Pine Island, MN 55963. 
Part of the W½ of the NW ¼ of Sect 19 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned 
District.  
 
The Applicant (USS Greenhouse Solar LLC) was present to represent the application. 

Mike Wozniak (Wozniak) and Ryan Bechel (Bechel) presented the staff report and attachments.   

Commissioner Marc Huneke arrived at 7:10 pm. 

Wozniak suggested relocating the access point a bit further south on 180th to not affect  

Commissioner Fox asked if there were any questions. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked about federal erosion control permit and inquired when it kicks 
in.  He asked if Beau Kennedy oversees that or does LUM office oversee it? 

Wozniak responded that we want evidence that the application has been made.   

Bechel asked if Commissioner Stenerson was speaking about the storm water pollution 
prevention plan. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak stated that the applicant does have to comply with state and federal requirements so 
it is not always necessary to directly call that out since it is implied.  

Commissioner Nesseth asked about recommendation number 3 – discussing the 
decommissioning of the project.  He stated that the recommendation doesn’t use specific name 
of the applicant. Commissioner Nesseth recommended changing the name to USS Greenhouse 
Solar LLS. 

Wozniak stated we can word it that way if the commissioner are more comfortable with that.  
Since the project is being requested specifically by USS Greenhouse Solar LLS, we should change 
that to specially identify that.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked what if they aren’t the owner in 20 years.  

Wozniak responded we don’t preclude these solar CUP’s from ownership changes, if the new 
owner complies with the conditions they are subject to complying with the conditions of the CUP.  
He stated that ability to sell or transfer may be addressed with the lease agreement with the 
property owner and the developer. 

Hanni interjected that is why we leave it open as how it’s stated so that it isn’t specific incase it 
gets sold off. 

Commissioner Nystruen agreed that he sees these getting sold often. 

Wozniak also agreed.     

Commissioner Fox asked if there were any other questions and then asked the applicants to come 
forward to speak. 

Wozniak noted he was out, so apologizes if he did not get everything exactly right in his report. 

Applicant Erica Forsman with US solar stated her colleague prepared comments to read.  She 
stated they wanted to make sure everyone had a good understanding of the project. 

Cullen Kobayashi project developer with US Solar read a report that was that was similar to 
that of the staff report.  He included speaking on financial surety, decommissioning and 
_______,    

Forsman interrupted to hand out a photo (attachment #1) of wooden fencing and barbed wire 
fencing.  She explained that the fence they would use would be wooden.   

Kobayashi concluded his report.  

Forsman spoke again regarding conversations with the neighbor Winkler they had over the 
weekend and wanted to update the planning committee on those conversations and the 
suggested modification.  She stated the two concerns from the Winkler’s were proximity and 
visibility of the array.  Forsman handed an image (attachment #2) the closest residence is 
approx. 530 feet from the nearest solar panel.  She continued the residence is 500 feet from the 
array area which is several times ordinance requirements for setbacks. Forsman stated that the 
vegetation on parcel as well as neighboring parcel blocks the views of the array from the 
Winkler’s.  She stated that USS Greenhouse Solar is a Minnesota based company and they try to 
have a good neighbor approach to their development.  She noted that in this instance the 
Winkler’s wanted the array to move further south but she concluded it is not possible at this 
point in time due to costs already incurred on this project.  Forsman offered to relocate the road 
to the South as well as the interconnection point which will move the poles 400 feet to the south 
to right along the other fence line.  She felt that they are well within the ordinance requirement 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

for this project with this updated version.   

Kobayashi continued on to say the project meets the ordinance requirements and will integrate 
into the community, increase the tax base, support land owners rights, enhance nearby crop 
yields and strengthen local wildlife.  He concluded with stating the township recommended 
approval of the project as well.   

Commissioner Fox asked if anybody from the board had any questions  

Commissioner Drazkowski asked for clarification regarding the amendment and wondered if 
USS Greenhouse was suggesting to move transmission poles, transformers and the maintenance 
road to the southern side of the property. 

Forsman answered correct. 

Commissioner Nystuen questioned if they were talking about southern line of the property – is 
that where the road would go? 

Forsman answered yes. 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that the road design is a little unique and questioned if that was 
for a temp construction site or is that all going to stay and asked if it is it a loading and unloading 
area 

Forsman responded that if the road design moved further to the south it would avoid the 
curvature.  She stated there is a turnaround point within the array area for the trucks to be able 
to turn around and these sites work so that there’s enough space within the design for all the 
construction and maintenance.   

Commissioner Stenerson inquired about the decommissioning agreement.    

Forsman stated that they do have that agreement already in their lease and that they typically 
don’t record the full lease since it is a financial agreement.  She stated that they can include the 
portion that is being requested by the county in the record if need be. 

Commissioner Stenerson noted that his thought was that this property may be resold and he 
wants to be sure that the agreement understood by the next buyer and make sure it is not a side 
deal between USS Greenhouse Solar and then it doesn’t get passed on.  He concluded that if it is 
attached to the lease then the person who is buying it would take it over.   

Forsman added that the commissioners are correct that it shouldn’t just say the Solar Company, 
it should actually say “USS GREENHOUSE SOLAR” because all other agreements are put in that 
LLC’s name so that if for some reason they are never not the owner, all of those documents 
transfer under that LLC.   

Commissioner Stenerson clarified that they are forming an LLC just for this project so that it’s 
not multiple projects under this LLC. 

Forsman responded correct and stated that is a requirement of the financiers for protection for 
everyone that the LLC would then easily transfer.   

Commissioner Petit asked who did the site visit. 

Wozniak responded only him and he did not coordinate with any of the commissioners because 
of the timing and a staffing crunch.  He stated the images are straight forward and he has 
additional photos if any of the commissioners would to see them.  He noted there is some slope 
to the property north of where the project area is and a drainage area with the vegetation in it 



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

with trees are tall substantial trees.  He noted tilled fields with corn on the east side of the 
property even though he didn’t get over there to walk that section.    

Commissioner Pettit asked if anyone knew who the CER on that property is.  

Wozniak stated that we do not use CER anymore. 

Commissioner Pettit asked if they would consider that high erodible.  

Hanni interjected that we don’t use CER anymore, we haven’t for about 10 years.  She considered 
this property as prime farm land. 

Wozniak also answered that it is in tilled crop land that is supporting crops and he did not see 
much evidence of much erosion on the property.  He noted the small amount of erosion he saw 
was south of where this project was going due to some recent rains. 

Commissioner Pettit directed a question at the applicants asking about their statement that the 
solar array will enhance nearby crop fields and wondered what that is based on. 

Forsman stated the study is based on pollinators regarding the grasses that they plant.  She 
noted that crop fields located near a site do better than others according to a U of M posted study 
on this issue recently.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned the plan for the tall trees that Mike (Wozniak) brought up. 
He wondered if the site was far enough away so the trees won’t need to be removed. 

Forsman responded that there are no plans to remove any of the trees, the array is sited far 
enough south that the trees aren’t shading the array. 

Commissioner Nesseth asked about the $20,000 surety.  He asked if that would be deposited in 
county funds somewhere.    

Forsman responded that if that is the decision of the planning commission it can be done.  She 
stated that typically it is at the county’s discretion for a 3rd party escrow to be set up and it’s 
something where the county would have to agree to the method on how to hold those funds.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the township asked for in terms of decommissioning.   

Forsman answered that the township did request that there be some money set aside. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked if they township was overseeing that or how that was being set 
up.   

Richard Miller with Pine Island Township asked if he could respond.  He stated they aren’t 
overseeing it.  This is the townships 4th solar array and they are starting to become - was asked 
to come up to the mic to be recorded.  

Miller stated that he lives relatively close to this site and that this site isn’t the largest in the area.  
He stated that solar arrays are starting to with him because he is unsure what to do in the way 
of making certain that they will be decommissioned properly.  He stated the township is not 
involved with escrow fund and their wishes are it would stay with the county.  He concluded 
that their one request was for escrow fund when the permit came to them. 

Commissioner Stenerson summarized that the township is more concerned with having an 
escrow fund or something for the decommissioning process but not that they oversee it and 
asked if a 3rd party such as a bank or a trust would be acceptable.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Miller answered yes, as long as it’s there and dedicated for decommissioning if/when needed. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked if that was something the township is requesting prior to 
construction or if they are allowing payments being made periodically.   

Miller responded that the township held their last meeting in the dark because they didn’t have 
electricity due to a storm so they didn’t go into detail as they were trying to wrap up the meeting 
quickly.  He stated that as far as moving the drive way he can’t imagine that would be a problem 
for the township but cannot speak for the other supervisors.  He stated they do not provide 
driveways but the township would like to be notified as to how it will be constructed and where 
it’s being constructed.   

Wozniak stated that driveway access point needs to be approved by township before 
construction can take place. 

Miller responded that the township is more worried about the site and the ability to be able to 
see in both directions.  He also noted that there is a driveway located to the south already to the 
field. 

Wozniak interjected regarding the financial assurance issue.  He stated that the county has the 
authority to require something in terms of financial assurance, but they haven’t implemented 
that authority and if the County does exercise that authority, the recommendation would be 
between the property owner and USS Solar Greenhouse LLC, not with the county involved, 
unless the Commissioners and the County Board would recommend something different.   

Chair Fox asked that we go into public comment at this time. He asked if anyone else had a 
comment or question for the applicant or staff. 

Commissioner Stenerson responded that he had one for staff he was attempting to ask. 

Chair Fox stated that can be asked after public hearing. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Don Schliep, 48383 Hwy 52 BLVD, Zumbrota, stated that his property butts up to this property 
on the east side.  He questioned how close to the line is this going to be, and is it going to be right 
on the line and if there are trees growing?  He stated he is concerned on who is going to take 
care of all of that line? He stated there are always problems with trees going up in that area.  
He noted that in the 4 mile stretch area there are already 85 acres of this solar panels.  Schliep 
asked much more are we going to allow.  He voiced concern that someone wants to put a house 
there, you can’t get a permit in A1 to do so, but all this land is available for solar panels.  He feels 
it is two-faced.  He stated the County has the goal of renewable energy, but maybe put it on non-
ag land.  

Matthew Winkler 48045 80th Ave (neighbor) stated he is concerned about this project.  He 
stated that he and his wife first learned about this project a week ago through the public notice.  
Winkler researched solar panel arrays impact on property values in other areas and was not 
able to find peer reviewed studies true scientific studies done independently.  He concluded the 
effect of solar farms on adjacent property values is unknown.  He stated the second concern was 
the absence of a screening or buffering plan in the applicant’s application.  He did not feel the 
applicant’s took the screening of the project from his view into consideration when developing 
the project.  Winkler stated his property is the closest property to the site with it being 500 feet 
away.  He stated that they are able to see the solar array from all rooms of their home, and 
although there is some screening by nature, the trees are not very large and do not screen the 
entire array due to the slope of the land and health of the trees.  Winkler noted that his realtor 



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

stated there is a risk to their property value by having this array located so close to their 
property and that moving the site 500 feet south would help that issue.  Winkler added they are 
not against this solar site but it should be moved further from their property.  He stated that 
when they asked the solar company to move the array, the solar company responded that it is 
late in the game and significant costs have already been incurred in the development, so they 
would not be able to move the array further from the Winkler property.  He noted that the solar 
company did agree to move items due to wetland concerns, but were unwilling to move them 
due to his concerns.  Winkler submitted that the PAC would require the solar farm be moved 500 
feet south where it would be furthest from all adjoining residences.   

Commissioner Drazkowski asked what the visual impact is exactly.  He questioned if 100’s of 
feet would have an impact on the property value and if the realtor gave them a value?  He asked 
by moving it south wouldn’t the array be moving further up the slope and therefore be more 
visible to the Winkler’s? 

Winkler responded that it may be that they see more of the panels but it is his position that 
having the array be located further from his property would lessen the financial impact the 
array may have on his property value.  He again stated he was frustrated that this option wasn’t 
considered early on and they wished the solar company would have contacted them previously.   

3After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Gale to close the public hearing. Motion 
carried 9:0 

Chair Fox asked if the applicant would like to respond to any of the issues that came up during 
the public hearing.  

Forsman responded to the first neighbor that spoke and stated the array is over 400 feet from 
the property line.  She responded to Mr. Winkler and apologized that he doesn’t feel his concerns 
were considered.  She stated that the solar company attempted to tuck the array in near the tree 
line to minimize the visual impact to his property. She also stated that Chisago County did a 
study on property values for properties located near solar arrays and that study stated no 
adverse impacts in resale values.  She reiterated that they try to use fencing and panels that are 
more visually appealing as well as panels that are lower than the 20 foot height limitation.  She 
stated their goal is to be a good neighbor.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked for clarification regarding a decommissioning plan with the 
land owner that involves separate funds set aside.   

Forsman clarified that the lease is an agreement that defines who takes care of the 
decommissioning and when it must occur.  She stated there is not a separate fund set aside.  She 
continued that it is an agreement to remove, it is not an agreement to escrow funds.    

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the time begins on the 25 year plan that is funded.  He 
asked if it started when it was approved, or when the construction was done.   

Forsman responded that for them it is from the day it is turned on.  Therefore she would request 
leeway so that it begins when the system turns on.    

Commissioner Nesseth asked if the 10 acres being leased touches Mr. Schliep’s property line or 
not. 

Forsman responded as it stands, the current plan is only for 6 acres of land.  She stated the solar 
company is requesting to move up to a 1 megawatt which would require 10 acres of land. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Nesseth asked again if the land being leased would be touching Mr. Shliep’s 
property. 

Forsman responded that she would have to do a layout to give the correct math, but they will 
still be following all setbacks and requirements if they were to get approval for the full 1 
megawatt system.      

Commissioner Nesseth responded that he was unsure if that answered his question.  He asked if 
the solar company would be leasing the acres on the east side near Mr. Shliep’s property. 

Forsman responded that it will depend on the final layout of the system.  She continued that if 
there is significant land there, they would attempt to leave that farmable, however, if there is a 
small strip of land, they would acquire that into their lease and maintain that land.   

Chair Fox asked if that was clear. 

Commissioner Nesseth responded that it still seems up in the air. 

Chair Fox asked that staff help answer this question. 

Hanni commented that she thinks they are asking if the solar panels are going up near the 
property line   

Commissioner Hunke stated there is an easement off of the gas line that would prevent the solar 
panels going over to Mr. Shliep’s property and that it is 408 feet away currently. 

Discussion regarding how close the project area can get to Schliep’s property line.   

Commissioner Gale asked that if they moved the solar array further up the hill wouldn’t you 
actually see more of the array than less.  And stated that where it is set currently would be the 
least offensive to the adjoining house. 

Forsman responded correct. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mike or Lisa why this is set up as a CUP and not an IUP since it 
has a term of years attached to it. 

Hanni responded that we used to do the solar arrays as IUPs but then ran into problems with 
financing so they changed them to CUPs going forward.   

Wozniak noted that the language regarding the 25 year start date can be adjusted as long as the 
Planning Commission and the County Board are okay with that as well.    

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact; 

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 10 acres. 
Parcel 39.019.0500. TBD 180th Ave, Pine Island, MN 55963. Part of the W½ of the NW ¼ of 
Sect 19 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District.  
 
Subject to the following conditions: 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans (PAC should consider whether there is 
any need for the County to require financial surety as proposed by the Applicant);  

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and USS Greenhouse Solar 
company shall be maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. The Applicant shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. The Applicant shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District 
to determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants’ shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 22 (Agricultural District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable 
zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Commissioner Stenerson suggested to move the process forward but he would like to see 
condition 11 changed to 30 years for construction and buffer time and condition 3, the 
decommissioning agreement, include a financial plan between land owner and solar company.  
He would agree to move this forward with the staff recommendations and these changes.   

Seconded by Commissioner Nystuen.   

Commissioner Drazkowski clarified in condition 3 the solar company name should be the exact 
name of USS Greenhouse Solar, LLC.   

Chair Fox asked if there was any further discussion needed.  

Commissioner Nesseth asked if there was more clarity on the financial surety.  He asked if we 
should state that a 3rd party hold those funds. 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that it his intention was that it is a main concern of the township 
to have that surety, so as long as there is something more than just a promise that would be 
sufficient. 

Hanni stated that we have a hard time putting a number on something that is going to happen 
30 years out. 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Drazkowski stated that there have been approximately 30 solar arrays 
constructed recently and have not had any that were made do a bond or financial agreement.  
He stated that the salvage value seems to exceed the recommission costs.   

Commissioner Stenerson responded that the township was concerned and at least we’ve 
addressed it. 

Commissioner Pettit commented there’s a lot of ground that’s highly erodible that should be 
taken out of production but in her opinion this land is not that land.  She stated she has a problem 
taking this prime agricultural ground out of production.   

Commissioner Nesseth commented that he is in favor of a surety bond because some recycling 
plants charge to take the panels once they are out of commission.  He cautioned that we want to 
protect the land owners as much as we can, and he believed the bond is a good idea.   

Discussion regarding adding the surety bond to the language of the conditions. 

Commissioner Pettit Opposed. 

Motion Carried 8:1 (Commissioner Pettit opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Villa Maria Ventures LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) 
29847 CTY 2 BLVD, Frontenac, MN 55066. Parcels 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400. Blocks C, D, 
and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Sect 12, all located 
in Twp 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. A2 Zoned Districts. 

1. Map Amendment (Rezone) 

Request for map amendment to rezone Parcels 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400 from A2 (General 
Agriculture District) to CR (Commercial Recreational District). 

2. CUP for a Resort Facility and Accessory Event Center 

Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to establish a Resort Facility with restaurant and 
event spaces. The proposal includes remodeling existing buildings and constructing additions to 
provide operational spaces for lodging, guest-houses, cabins, on-site restaurants, outdoor 
entertainment, and events.  

The Applicant (John Rupp) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments. She stated we are running these 
two together to make the best use of your time.   

Email from Molly and Chris that Lisa Hanni read in its entirety.  The email stated that they are 
the adjoining neighbors and are in full support of Rupp’s plans for the Villa Maria.   

Commissioner Pettit asked staff if the employee count listed on the report is after phase 1 or 
phase 2 of the project.  

Bechel responded that the number of 80 employees is what they will need 2 years after phase 1 
of the project and phase 2 would require additional employees.   

Hanni noted staff did make a site visit and walked the property.   

Rezoning issue discussion first. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Rupp if he had anything to help orientate where everything is 
located on the property.  He requested something that showed where the dorms are, where the 
pool is, in reference to what the plans to change and add on are.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Rupp responded that he would walk the commissioners through the main building if they would 
direct their attention to the map they were given.  He stated that the “main” level is what they 
call floor 1 on the plans.  He walked through each level and explained what would change and 
what would stay the same in each level of the main building.  He noted that the addition behind 
the chapel would be an open to the public restaurant/dining room.   

Chair Fox asked if there were any further questions for the applicant. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing for both items. 

Dave Kendall 29178 Westervlet Ave.  He stated that he has talked to some neighbors and there 
are some environmental impact concerns.  He is concerned about the Mississippi River impact 
and the impact to the birds that come through there often in the spring and the fall.  He noted he 
is also concerned about the nests being affected by the noise and traffic that would come with 
the facility.    He also wondered if the sudden influx of people would have an impact on the water 
table and the water pressure at his own home.  Mr. Kendall stated that they have no fire or police 
coverage and is concerned about enforcement there.  He noted that noise pollution is also a real 
concern for him and his neighbors.  He mentioned covenant rules that are very strict and have 
to abide by.  He continued that he is concerned about the fishing impact and the use of the 
Florence township boat ramp that this facility would have.  Mr. Kendall stated that there is a 
beach and a ramp but the parking lot is very small and he is concerned that there would not be 
enough space for the amount of people that would come to the facility.  He noted that he is also 
concerned about the accident potential getting to and from the Villa Maria.  He concluded that 
people live in this area because it’s secluded and quiet and has historical value.  Mr. Kendall 
opined that this venue would be disruptive.  He also questioned whether all the land that is 
shown on the other side of Winona street.   

Bechel responded that the land Mr. Kendall is speaking of is not part of this project.  

Chair Fox asked if anyone else wished to speak.   

Kate Eiynck MSA professional services as a consulting planner for Florence Township to review 
zoning applications.  She stated the township received Mr. Rupp’s change of zone application 
Change of zone application at the township meeting last Monday.  She stated that Florence 
Township is scheduling a public hearing October 8th and they will likely make their decision on 
the change of zone request on October 15th.  She stated that tonight was a township meeting in 
Florence Township and residents had to choose between that and this meeting.  Eiynck thanked 
Mr. Rupp for the thorough application.  She requested that the decision be tabled or delayed 
until after Florence Township makes their decision.   

Beth Knutson with the Florence Township PAC reiterated what Kate Eiynck said.  She requested 
a delay in the decision.   

Commissioner Drazkowski asked what exactly it is that Florence Township was asking.   

Eiynck interjected Florence Township is considering the change of zone request which could be 
approved and then the township would defer to county on CUP application. 

Wozniak stated that if the township decided not to rezone the property, the building permits 
would not be approved when applied for at the township level. 

Eiynck responded that if the property stayed A2, there would be some conditional uses available 
to Mr. Rupp for the property.  She asked for clarification on the new assembly ordinance that is 
being amended and whether. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni responded as amended.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked if the concern of the township is mainly with the rezoning or the 
CUP.  

Eiynck responded that her concern is with the public in Florence Township is having to make a 
choice between this hearing and the Florence Township hearing so they were not able to come 
tonight.  Kate added that she would want the hearing to continue on tonight with discussion 
from the commissioners and the other members of the public present, but that the decision be 
tabled.   

Jim Anderson (34873 Winona Street) stated he is the closest neighbor to this development.  He 
stated that he knows John Rupp because his sons mowed lawn across the street at the Villa this 
summer.  He was concerned about what was going to happen at the Villa Maria.  He stated that 
he is amazed at what’s been happening and how the property is being cleaned up.  He stated he 
is concerned with is Winona street and how that will impact traffic and can the street handle it.  
He also questioned where the future hotel will go as he doesn’t understand the area for the future 
hotel.  (Map discussion on the presentation regarding location of hotel, street, location to his 
own home). He questioned the impacts of this type of venue? Mr. Anderson concluded that he 
says all of this cautiously because he wants to see something positive happen here and he plans 
to continue to nurture a positive relationship between neighbors. 

Kristin Eide Tollefson (28477 Lake Ave, Frontenac) handed out a letter (attachment #3) from 
the Florence Township Land Use Committee regarding the process. She stated that the township 
is being precluded by the timeline and the challenges the timeline presents.  She requested the 
support moving forward to provide a more efficient process.  She stated that the letter addresses 
specific requests the Township has regarding the costs, delay, and conflicts in the future.    

5After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the public hearing. Motion 
carried 6:0 

Commissioner Nesseth questioned how the 60-day rule works regarding the request for a delay 
in the decision.   

Hanni stated we have 60 days to make a final decision.  She stated that we have had this 
conversation many times given the County Board dual authority. Each entity has their own 
zoning ordinance and rules.  She commented that they looked over the month of March as an 
example and concluded that there is no way the county can schedule the meetings to fit 
everything in as well as each month we don’t know where the applications will be coming from.    
She stated that if the decision is delayed, it would still fall within 60 days, however, then a 2 
month process became a 3 month process with the County and she is concerned about doing 
that.  She also addressed the concern of the large events which Mr. Rupp said is something that 
will happen later on in the process, not right away.  She stated that Mr. Rupp would like to begin 
working on the main building first and get that going before he would schedule events.     

Hanni stated that regarding the Assembly Controls, any event more than 500 attendees must 
come to the County Board for a hearing process and outline everything listed in the ordinance 
and each event would be separately licensed.  She stated there would be a public hearing where 
residents of the area can come in and see the entire plan before it is granted.  She stated that Mr. 
Rupp would have to follow the more restrictive Assembly Control Ordinance for every event 
over 500 people he would like to hold.   

Hanni addressed the environmental impact concerns and stated most of events and activities 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

will take place within the buildings so that the only noise pollution would be major events.     

Bechel added that the rezone automatically goes to the County Board for a second public 
hearing.   

Commissioner Nesseth asked what date did Mr. Rupp file.  

Bechel responded that the application was received August 23rd which puts the 60 day mark at 
October 21st.   

Hanni stated if the decision is tabled there has to be a reason for doing so and if it is tabled then 
it’s adding another whole month on the county’s process. 

Commissioner Drazkowski clarified that the rezone would be another public hearing at the 
County Board level, but not the CUP? 

Staff responded yes.   

Commissioner Drazkowski informed Rupp that he is familiar with his properties and has 
recognized what he’s done and it’s successful not bankrupt.  He stated that the properties are 
skillfully done and he would imagine the same thing here, doing the project skillfully and 
thoughtfully.  Commissioner Drazkowski stated he sees the hesitation with the township with 
the second phase of the cabins and potential hotel.  He asked Rupp if that is something that has 
to be done (the second phase)?  He stated that he sees Rupp has a lot of aggressive plans to utilize 
the property to its fullest, which he sees a reason why the township may be hesitating.  He asked 
Mr. Rupp how he viewed the second phase specifically.   

Rupp responded that there are only 40 rooms in first phase and it would be very difficult to 
sustain a boutique hotel with only 40 rooms.  He stated that the second phase would be how he 
would make the venture sustainable.  Rupp added that the first phase is his attempt at proving 
his concept and that he will need the second phase to continue the venture into the future.  He 
admitted it would scare him to risk doing the first phase without the assurance of being able to 
continue on to the second phase.  He stated that he has been successful in ventures like this in the 
past and plans to continue to do that with Villa Maria.   

Rupp stated that they take being good neighbors very seriously because if they are not, then the 
venture fails.  He also commented on the environmental aspect of the project and stated that he 
is obsessive about making sure that he does not disturb the environment because that is part of 
the product he is selling, that is why people are coming to this space.  Rupp stated that he gave 
permission to Audubon to do one of its annual bird counts and he hopes that the continue to 
come back every year because there are more than 260 species of birds on the Mississippi fly 
way and he doesn’t want to do anything to disturb that.   

Rupp stated that he was upfront about all of his future plans so that there was no question where 
he wanted to go with the project and then 5 years down the road be unhappy with the further 
changes and improvements he was making as happens sometimes with other developers.  He 
stated that he does not want to add too much density to the area because people will be coming 
to this hotel to walk the beautiful landscape and enjoy the quiet of outside.  He also commented 
that he doesn’t plan to do anything to Winona Street at all.  He explained that there is plenty of 
parking on the property where you won’t even be able to see most of the cars from the street.  He 
indicated that he is in the process of closing off the other entrances so that there is no way to get 
into the property from Winona Street.   

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has many questions, the first being one regarding the septic 
system size and who would oversee it.  He voiced concern regarding whether or not the septic 



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

would be able to keep up with all of the guests Rupp is proposing will be on the property in the 
future.   

Bechel answered that the entity that oversees it will depend on the final product and that Mr. 
Rupp has consultants working on it right now, but if flow goes over 10,000 gallons a day, it will 
be overseen by the state.  

Commissioner Stenerson commented that there would be a large volume of sewage and 
questioned if there is any danger of nitrate pollution into a neighboring well.    

Staff explained that the system will be monitored as part of an operating permit.  Bechel stated 
that Rupp’s systems will be monitored to make sure they are compliant.   

Rupp stated that the system that is there currently was getting more use than he plans to have.  
He stated that the increase will be once a twice a week when they have a wedding, but the system 
will be constructed and permitted by engineers to make sure the system accommodates that.   

Commissioner Stenerson voiced concern regarding how vague the hours are for the hotel dining 
room breakfast area and bar that are open to the public.  He is wondering if the restaurant will 
be open from 6 am at breakfast and open until bar close at 1 am. 

Rupp responded that the restaurant will be open to the public but he is not hoping or anticipating 
that many people from the public will be going there and it will be more so for the hotel or 
property guests.  He stated that the appeal of the hotel and restaurant is to not have it be 
crowded and it will have limited seating capacity.    

Commissioner Stenerson continued to question the issue of leaving the bar open late as well as 
the bar’s liquor license and asked Rupp to address the plan for the bar as he does not want to 
see fish fry’s happening on Friday nights or large bands/concerts until all hours of the night.   

Rupp responded he hadn’t spent time thinking about if the hotel doesn’t work and someone 
comes along to purchase it to have rock n’ roll bands playing all night.  He stated that his thought 
was that he would get a liquor license and in his experience it’s at the licensing point that all 
those controls are put in and if they are violated, then the license is revoked.  He stated that is 
the control even if there is a bad actor that replaces him one day.   

Hanni interjected that the County gives out the liquor licenses and that is where the controls are.  
She stated there are different kinds of licenses, some year round and some for the event.   

Further discussion regarding how the County handles liquor licenses, the tiers there are, and the 
renewal process.   

Commissioner Drazkowski stated that seeing some of the other properties Rupp has created, he 
is not worried about the liquor license and the bar hours.   

Hanni stated that each demo permit, each building permit, etc. will come through the county 
and the township, so there will still be checks and balances throughout the process.  She stated 
she told Mr. Rupp to propose the big picture so that he doesn’t get one thing done and then have 
to come back through this whole process to have to update his CUP.  She continued that goes for 
the septic review, stating every time Rupp adds on to his buildings the septic will be reviewed.   

Commissioner Stenerson responded by saying there are check and balances on state standards, 
but not on hours of operation.  He stated that his job on the commission is to set those standards 
by way of conditions and he wondered if there should be conditions added here as part of the 
CUP.    



Page - 14 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni responded that Rupp will have to follow code by not allowing more people in his buildings 
than building code allows.   

Further discussion regarding number or people allowed in the establishment at certain times of 
the night, possibly drinking or not.  As well as further discussion on the liquor license and those 
controls.   

Chair Fox asked if there were any more questions. 

6Motion by Commissioner Drazkowski seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact; 

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for map 
amendment to rezone Parcels 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400 from A2 (General Agriculture 
District) to CR (Commercial Recreational District). 

Commissioner Stenerson stated he will vote against this because the bar is too big and he does 
not support a bar there.  He also noted that he is offended that the bar is going to sit on top of 
the Alter and the old sanctuary is going to be the lounge of the bar.  

Commissioner Nesseth asked if Florence Township has to approve this before it was all done.   

Hanni responded that Florence Township will follow their own path.   

Further conversation regarding Florence Township and their approval versus the zoning from 
the Commissioners. 

Commissioner Drazkowski called for a vote.   

Commissioner Stenerson opposed 

Motion Carried 8:1 

Hanni stated the second item is for the CUP and she stated staff can bring the concerns 
regarding the liquor license to the County Board and look through the process to see if there are 
enough controls on that licensing.  She stated if there are not enough controls staff can come 
back with Mr. Rupp with extra conditions to control those issues.     

Commissioner Gale commented that a hotel has to run 24 hours a day 7 days a week.  He 
questioned how they could get around that when those are the hours of a hotel. 

Hanni responded that she viewed Mr. Stenerson’s question as how long will the bar be open and 
the liquor license should take care of setting those hours.  She stated if it doesn’t staff will work 
with Mr. Rupp to put controls on the issue of the bar hours.   

Commissioner Drazkowski commented there are a number of rural event center and bars that 
have passed in the recent years and they all have had time limit imposed on them because of the 
liquor etc., etc.  He stated that the commissioners would impede the business by putting 
restrictions on events such as weddings that would be held at this venue.  He stated that the 
hours the business is open will fit the hours that make sense for that business.    

Chair Fox commented on state liquor licensing, hours, criteria, sell, be open, the type of facility 
licensed.  He stated if it’s licensed in the building, you can’t walk outside with a beer because 



Page - 15 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

there are controls on there - tight controls.  He stated that it is not free reign.   

Commissioner Nesseth interjected that he is a current liquor license holder and he can attest that 
there are very strict rules regarding the hours of serving.   

Discussion regarding the difference between the atmosphere in Minneapolis and St. Paul and if 
the state controls the liquor license why is there such a different atmosphere.  Discussion 
continued into the type of management in cities and bars can affect the atmosphere.   

Bechel added that if a situation would occur staff can bring the owner/operator back and put 
additional controls and conditions on the CUP.   

Commissioner Feuling stated that he believes Mr. Rupp will have different clientele than those 
who are frequenting downtown Minneapolis.   

7Motion by Commissioner Drazkowski seconded by Commissioner Feuling, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact; 

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to establish a Resort Facility with restaurant and event spaces. The proposal 
includes remodeling existing buildings and constructing additions to provide operational spaces 
for lodging, guest-houses, cabins, on-site restaurants, outdoor entertainment, and events. 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation for the Resort Facility shall be year-round, 7-days per week; 

3. Hours of operation for Accessory Events shall be year-round, 7-days per week, ending no 
later than 12:00 AM (midnight); 

4. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

5. On-street loading and off-loading shall be prohibited; 

6. Security personnel shall be provided at events and venues in which alcohol is served; 

7. Events exceeding 500 guests shall obtain required approvals in accordance with the 
Goodhue County Assembly Controls Ordinance; 

8. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for proposed additions and 
improvements from the Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to 
establishing the use; 

9. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance 
with the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance prior to establishing the use; 

10. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including Article 30 CR, 
Commercial Recreational District; 

11. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

Motion Carried 8:1 (Commissioner Stenerson opposed) 



Page - 16 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Other discussion 
 
Lisa Hanni pointed out that in the updated Conservation Subdivision there were a few changes 
on the second page in subdivision 6 which is highlighted and she read the change.  She stated 
the second change is concerning open space and she followed the conservation easment statute 
more closely.  She continued discussing changes that were made to ADU’s in the new zone as 
well.  She stated that regarding Solar Energy Systems that is an accesory use and suggested 
only allowing a residential SES’s which don’t have to be attached to your house, it is based on 
use, not location.     
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked if this was a separate zone? 
 
Hanni responded that it is indeed a separate zone that is only going in targeted areas.   
 
Discussion regarding going off the grid in the conservation zones and whether or not solar 
farms should be allowed for that purpose.   
 
Hanni stated the joint PAC and BOA meeting is coming up in November and suggested that 
maybe we invite the Townships to a meeting to discuss this zone as well as a number of items 
or issues the Townships may have.   
 
Commissioner Gale noted that not all townships may be interested in this zone.   
 
Hanni  stated that this is intended to be a tool if it works for the township if they want it, they 
don’t have to use it.   
 
Commissioner Nystuen suggested to invite all township and whoever comes will know about 
it. 
 
Hanni stated again this is an option for people who want to use it.   
 
Chair Fox agreed that there should be one meeting whoever is interested come look at it.   
 
Further discussion regarding using this new zone in the townships and which townships would 
want to use it or learn about it.   
 
Richard Miller stated that how it is written now is confusing in reference to common area and 
what can be done with it.  He stated the way he reads it right now that he can plant corn in the 
common areas and he’s unsure if it is intended to be left that wide open.     
 
Hanni stated they didn’t want to make the zone very restrictive.     
 
Further discusission regarding vagueness of the zone.  Discussion regarding the specifics being 
worked out when the application is submitted and at public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Nesseth requested clairifacation on subdivision 6.   
 



Page - 17 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni stated that if you want to bring the conservation subdivision in, staff would request a 
plat and plan showing how it would all be layed out as well as getting township approval.  The 
township does have the right to reject the plat and the plan even if they don’t have zoning.   
 
Discussion regarding the difference between county zoning and township zoning.   
 
Hanni stated the county has not approved a plat that the township has not approved.   
 
Wozniak stated the concept behind this subdivision is for townships who want to utilize it.  He 
stated that if a township isn’t interested in that subdivision, then the county would not approve 
it.   
 
Hanni requested that the November meeting start early and we invite the townships to come to 
it to discuss this and any other topics they want to discuss.  She also informed Commissioner 
Feuling that he will be replaced that Commissioners Fox, Pettit, and Drazkowski need to be re-
upped by January and Commissioner Nesseth has a replacement for Commissioner Feuling. 
 
Commissioner Nystuen noted that there are solar gardens coming in the future so he suggested 
coming up with another way to deal with the decomissioning of these Solar arrays. 
 
Hanni responded that solar is not as big of a land use issue as minig is and the information 
received tonight regarding the value at the end of the panel’s life is all good to know.  She 
stated she hesistates to have the county hold the money for 30 years and suggested that if a 
plan needs to be done, it should be on file with the county and name the county as one of the 
parties.   
 
Commissioner Nystuen stated he doesn’t mind how it’s done, he would just like a plan.   
 
Further discussin regarding decommissioning of solar panels.   
 
8Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Feuling, second by Commissioner Huneke, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 9:58 PM.  
 
Motion carried 9:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  
Motion carried 8:0. 

3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  
Motion carried 9:0 

4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy 
System. 

Motion carried 8:1 (Commissioner Pettit opposed) 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 9:0 

                                                 



Page - 18 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

September 17, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for map amendment to rezone Parcels 
32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400 from A2 to CR. 

Motion carried 8:1 (Commissioner Stenerson opposed) 
7 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for CUP by John Rupp to establish a Resort 
Facility 

Motion carried 8:1 (Commissioner Stenerson opposed) 
8 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 9:0 



abreyfogle
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by abreyfogle

abreyfogle
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1



Attachment #2



Attachment #3

























































 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning 
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To: Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 15, 2018 
Report date: October 5, 2018 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP request for a Non-Agricultural Use Associated with Agri-
tourism (Wedding Event Center)  
Request for a CUP submitted by Kevin Riester (owner) to establish a Wedding Barn Event Center 
with a proposed maximum occupancy of 300 guests. Parcel 34.002.0900. 29065 Flower Valley RD 
Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the E½ of the SW ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek 
Township. A2 Zoned District. 

Application Information: 
Applicant: Kevin Riester (owner) 
Address of zoning request: 29065 Flower Valley RD Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel(s): 34.002.0900 and 34.002.0905 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the E½ of the SW ¼ of Sect 02 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay 
Creek Township. 
Township Information: Hay Creek Township endorsed acknowledgment of the Applicant’s request. 
Zoning District: A2 (General Agriculture District) 

Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Site Photos 
Article 11, Section 30 Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  

Summary:  
The applicant (Kevin Riester) initially cleaned up and renovated a barn and shed on his property to 
host his wedding. He has since utilized the facilities to host country-style weddings and events for 
friends, and family on a limited basis for the past 7 years. The Goodhue County ordinance allows 
citizens to host up to two events/activities per calendar year without requiring issuance of a CUP 
(Conditional Use Permit).  

Given the success of previous events, the applicant is requesting a CUP to allow him the opportunity 
to host 1 event per weekend from May through October. The request includes utilizing a repurposed 
barn and shed to provide operational space for weddings and events for up to 300 people.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
• The subject property consists of two contiguous parcels comprising 47.2 acres. The property is 

zoned A2 (General Agriculture District). The property is the applicant’s primary residence. 

 The property is bordered by A2 zoning districts on all sides. Adjacent land uses include 
undeveloped woodlands, low-density residential and row-crop agriculture.  

 Access to the site is located off of Flower Valley Road (asphalt surface) on the south side of the 
property. Flower Valley Road accesses US HWY 61 approximately 1.5 miles northeast of the site 
and US HWY 58 3.0 miles west of the site.  

 A portion of the property is within the shoreland district of Bullard Creek. Any development 
activities or grading/filling proposed in these areas will be subject to Goodhue County shoreland 
protection regulations.  

Weddings/Events: 
 No new structures are proposed with the request. An existing 100ft x 40ft shed with an estimated 

capacity of 25o guests will be used for large weddings and gatherings. The existing 40ft x 60ft 
barn has an estimated capacity of up to 100 guests and would be used for smaller-scale events. A 
60ft x 20ft lean-to located north of the shed is also available for use during events. 

The Riester’s dwelling and existing residential accessory structures are not proposed to be used 
in conjunction with weddings or events.  

 The applicant plans to hire engineers/architects to evaluate the existing barn for Minnesota 
building code compliance and structural integrity.  Any necessary renovations will be reviewed as 
required by Goodhue County Building Department staff to ensure compliance with Minnesota 
building code regulations and issuance of required building permits. 

 Hours of operation are proposed to be Saturdays from 1:00 PM to 11:30 PM, May through 
October. Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO) Article 11, section 30 stipulates inside 
activities must be concluded by 10:00 PM for Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-
tourism. The applicants have submitted a request for a variance to the Goodhue County Board of 
Adjustment to allow inside activities to conclude at 11:30 PM 

 All food and/or liquor offered during events will be prepared and catered by appropriately 
licensed professionals.  

 Staff will be present on site at all times to ensure guest safety and security.  

 No overnight stays or camping activities are proposed or allowed with this request.  

Employees: 
 The applicant anticipates the need for 1 or 2 part-time Non-resident Employees to assist with 

events.  

Noise: 
 Noise generated during events is planned to be confined within the shed and barn to minimize 

impacts to neighboring properties. The nearest residence is located approximately 550 ft east of 
the site (Audrey Stumpf) 

 The applicant has hosted similar weddings and events for the past 7 years.  Goodhue County has 
not received any official complaints regarding the applicant’s previously hosted events.  

Lighting: 
 Existing Dusk-to-dawn yard lighting and exterior security lighting provide sufficient lighting for 

guest safety. No additional exterior lighting is proposed with this request.   

Traffic and Parking: 
 Some additional traffic will be generated with the request. Event traffic is generally “one-way” as 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

guests typically will arrive around the same time at the start of the event and then gradually filter 
out as the day progresses. The driveway approach has safe lines-of-sight in both directions for 
traffic entering and exiting onto Flower Valley Road. The local transportation network appears 
capable of supporting the request without negatively impacting traffic flow or safety along the 
access route.  

 On-site traffic negotiates a curve around an existing garage near the properties entrance and is 
then directed along a field-line west of the shed and barn area for guest safety. Adequate 
emergency vehicle access is available to service the facility. 

 There are 100 grassed parking stalls identified west of the barn and shed. The applicant 
anticipates surfacing the parking area with gravel in the future to prevent erosion and parking 
issues in inclement weather. There is space available on the properties to accommodate 
additional parking in the future if needed.   

Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, section 16, the Zoning Administrator has determined minimum 
off-street parking provisions shall be one parking space for every 4 guests. A minimum of 75 
off-street parking spaces is required for this facility at a maximum occupancy of 300 guests.  

 GCZO Article 11 section 30 stipulates parking areas shall be setback 40 feet from property lines. 
The applicant’s proposed parking area straddles a common property line amongst his two 
parcels. If the applicant sells his property in the future he will need to reconfigure the parking 
area to ensure it is set back a minimum of 40 feet from the property lines of adjacent landowners.   

Utilities: 
 The existing dwelling is served by an individual Subsurface Sewage Treatment System (SSTS). 

The applicant is proposing to use satellite bathrooms and sinks to provide sanitary facilities for 
event guests as he has done for past events. Sanitation plans will require review and approval by 
Goodhue County Environmental Health staff prior to commencing operation of the Wedding 
Event Center.   

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided locally. Any hazardous materials or fluids 
generated shall be properly disposed of.  

Signage: 
The applicant is proposing to install a temporary sign near the property’s entrance during events. 
Signage must follow the requirements of GCZO Art. 11 Sect. 17.  

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 Minimal landscaping work will be needed as the applicant will be using existing structures. Some 

grading may be required in the future to improve the parking area. Grading and filling activities 
will be reviewed for conformance with Goodhue County Zoning requirements. 

 The majority of the property drains north toward Bullard Creek. The property is in compliance 
with shoreland buffer requirements.  

 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Wedding Barn and Event Center does not appear injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it 
substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use has been 
established and operating since 2011 without any record of conflicts with existing residential uses 
in the area.  

2. The Wedding Barn and Event Center is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
and the majority of the operations will be confined within the existing structures. The use, as 
proposed, appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The Wedding Barn and Event Center will be conducted primarily within the existing and 
structures to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of 
these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicant’s lighting plans appear capable of 
controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Kevin Riester to 
establish a Wedding Barn Event Center with a maximum occupancy of 300 guests. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP.   

2. Hours of operation shall be Saturdays, May through October from 1:00 PM to 10:00 PM 
unless a variance is granted by the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment to allow hours to 
extend to no later than 11:30 PM; 

3. Maximum occupancy shall be limited to 300 guests per event; 

4. All parking areas shall be setback a minimum of 40 feet from the property lines of adjacent 
landowners; 

5. On-street event parking shall be prohibited; 

6. Use of the property by event guests for over-night stays shall require issuance of a separate 
CUP/IUP; 

7. Security personnel shall be present at all events in which alcohol is served; 

8. All exterior signage located on the property must follow Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
Article 11 section (Sign Regulations). The applicant shall consult the appropriate road 
authority prior to placing signs located within road right-of-way; 

9. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for use of existing structures from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

10. Applicants shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to develop and 
implement a plan to provide adequate sanitary facilities for guest use; 

11. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

12. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 11, 
section 30 Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism; Goodhue County 
SSTS Ordinance; and Article 22 A2, General Agriculture District. 

 



















Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 11  Amended April 17, 2018 

ARTICLE 11    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

SECTION 30.    NON-AGRICULTURAL USES ASSOCIATED WITH 
AGRICULTURAL TOURISM  
Subd. 1. Non-agriculturally related uses that are associated with Agricultural Tourism as defined 

in Article 10 (Definitions) may be permitted in the A-1, A-2, or A-3 Zone Districts subject 
to approval subject to approval of a zoning permit by the Zoning Administrator for up to 
two (2) events/activities per calendar year.  The right to utilize property for more than 
two events/activities per calendar year is subject to approval of a conditional use permit 
or an interim use permit by the Board of County Commissioners.  The following 
information must be provided with a zoning permit, interim use or conditional use 
permit: In addition to submittal requirements set forth Article 4 (Conditional and 
Interim Uses), the following information must be provided with a conditional use permit 
or interim use permit application. 

A. Plan drawn to an appropriate scale for effective interpretation. 

B. Property boundaries, onsite parking areas and access roads. 

C. Existing uses on adjacent properties and distance of dwellings within 500 feet of 
the property boundary. 

D. Existing and proposed structures with maximum capacity of each building where 
guests have access as required to comply with building code and applicable fire 
safety requirements. 

E. Location of temporary toilet facilities, which may be required. 

F. Location of any existing or proposed wells or Subsurface Wastewater Treatments 
Systems (SSTS). 

G. A written description of the planned activities providing including maximum 
number of guests/visitors. 

H. Frequency and number of activities proposed in a calendar year. 

I. Hours of Operation/Activity including set-up/clean-up for activities and events.  

J. Maximum number of guests for any activity. 

K. Proposed site lighting or landscaping. 

L. Anticipated maximum number of vehicle trips per day. 

Subd. 2 Performance Standards.   

In addition to all other applicable zoning ordinance requirements including but not 
limited to the review criteria (findings) included in Article 4, Section 5, the following 
items shall be considered by the Planning Advisory Commission and County Board when 
reviewing a Conditional Use Permit or Interim Use Permit Application for various Non-
Agricultural Uses associated with Agricultural Tourism.  

A. The size of the function and the number of expected guests on the property at one 
time shall be determined at the sole discretion of the County based on parcel size, 
proximity to adjacent neighbors and the ability of the applicant to demonstrate 
that there will be no unreasonable adverse impact on the neighbors from the 
noise, traffic, trespass, light or other impacts deemed relevant by the County. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended April 17, 2018 

 

B. There is adequate provision for parking of vehicles so that there is no parking on 
public roads and adequate setbacks from adjacent properties are maintained. 
Temporary parking areas may be approved at the sole discretion of the County. 
Parking areas must be a minimum of forty (40) feet from all property lines, and 
appropriately screened from neighboring property. Light sources shall be 
directed downwards and shielded to prevent light being directed off the 
premises. 

C. The County may require a planted buffer between adjacent properties and 
parking or building if it is determined that such a buffer is necessary to avoid 
adverse impacts on adjacent properties. 

D. All State of Minnesota and Goodhue County requirements related to Water and 
Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems must be met. 

E. Outside, sales related activities must be completed during daylight hours. Inside 
activities must be completed by 10:00 p.m. 

F. Any on-site preparation and handling of food or beverages must comply with all 
applicable Federal, State or Local Standards. 

G. The owner/operator will maintain a log of the activities occurring at the included 
activity/event dates, group identity, times and number of guests. 

H. The site plan with the above written descriptions along with any condition added 
during Planning Advisory Commission and/or County Board review will become 
a part of any approved conditional use permit or interim use permit. 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 1 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 15, 2018 
Report date: October 05, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: to consider Goodhue County Ordinance updates  
“Housekeeping” updates throughout ordinance to remove typographical errors, correct inaccurate 
references, remove redundant language, and improve language consistency.   
Amend Articles 21 -24 (District Regulations) to consolidate permitted and conditionally permitted uses into 
a single “table of uses” to improve ease of use, remove redundant language, and facilitate future ordinance 
revisions. 
 
Attachments: 
“Table of Uses” 
List of proposed “Housekeeping” changes 
 
Summary: 
Staff are proposing a number of small-scale “housekeeping” updates to the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance. Over time, new ordinance additions and piecemeal amendments have resulted in some 
typographical errors, inaccurate references, redundant language, and inconsistencies that require 
updating to improve clarity, accuracy, and ease of use of the ordinance.  
 
Staff are also proposing to consolidate permitted and conditionally permitted uses into a single “table 
of uses” for the A1, A2, A3, and R1 districts. Reorganizing uses into a single table would simplify 
future amendments to the district uses and create a “menu” of permissible uses for each district that 
would be much more user-friendly than the current configuration. 

 
Staff Recommendation:  
Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record, and APPROVE the proposed amendments to the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1

P P P P
NP NP NP P
P P P P

C/I  C/I C/I NP
NP NP NP  C/I

P P NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP
P P P NP
P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP

P P P NP
P P P NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
P P P NP
P P P NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I C/I NP

C/I

P P P P
P P P I
I I I NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I NP NP

P P NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP

a. Accessory buildings > 500ft 2  shall be ≥ 100ft from any lot line and ≥ 200ft from the nearest dwelling (Art.23 § 3 subd. 1)

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

Non-Agricutlural Uses Associated W/Agritourism  (Art. 11 § 30)
3  horses on a minimum 5 acre lot

Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard (Art.11 § 10)
Mining, Quarrying, Excavating/Filling  (Art.14)

Industrial

Contractors Yard (Art.11 § 33)
Veterinary Clinic

Commercial 

Two, Three, Or Four Family Dwellings

b. Any mining, excavating, or filling of land for these uses shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 10)
c. Accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to this use shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 11)

Mobile Home Park ( Art. 16 )
Residential Accessory Buildings ≥ 7,200ft2 (Art. 11 § 6)
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) (Art. 11 § 31)

New Feedlot (Art.13)

Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand < 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand > 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Plant Nurseries & Sales
Farm Wineries < 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)
Farm Wineries > 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

Home Businesses - Tier 3 (Art.11 § 12)
Commercial Kennel/Raising of fur-bearing animals (Art.11 § 26)
Commercial/Industrial Uses primarily intended to serve Ag. Community
Boarding or Rooming Houses as an accessory use
Bed and Breakfast Inn (Art.11 § 13)

Agricultural 

Residential 

Agricultural Operations (including tree farms) (Art.11 § 24)

Feedlot expansion up to ≤ 100 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 300 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 500 Animal Units (Art.13)
Animal waste storage structure ≥ 500,000 gallons (lagoon system, earthen basin, or associated 
structure [pit]) (Art.13)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Table of Uses

Home Businesses - Tier 1 (Art.11 § 12)
Home Businesses - Tier 2 (Art.11 § 12)

Use

Single-Family Dwelling

Temporary/Seasonal Off-Site Roadside Produce Stands
Education Farm Retreat (Art. 11 § 14)

New Feedlot outside of Farmyard (Art.13)

Feedlots (Art.13)



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1

C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
NP NP NP C/I
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP
NP C/I C/I NP

C/I C/I C/Iabc NP

NP C/I NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP

NP C/I C/I NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
NP NP C/Ibc NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP

P P P P
P P C/I NP

C/I C/I NP NP
P P C/I NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
P P P P
P P P P

C/I C/I NP NP
C/I NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Storage Structure (size & location to be approved by the Planning 
Advisory Commission)

Public Stable

Non-agricultural Lagoons (In accordance w/ MPCA regulations)
Migratory Labor Camp
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

Institutional
Community Building

Cemetery
Memorial Garden
Public School

SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Table of Uses

Use

Private School
Nursery School

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Facilities (including, but not limited to, Golf Courses/Driving Ranges, 
Tennis Courts, Skiing, Swimming Pools, Park Facilities)

Park/Recreational Area (operated by a governmental agency)
Park/Recreational Area
Hunting Club/Shooting Preserve
Campground &/or RV Site (Art.16 § 7)
Park Manager's Residence (1 per campground/RV park w/ ≥ 30 campsites)

Recreational 

Miscellaneous

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Aircraft Landing Fields & Facilities 
Sanitary Landfills/Sewage Disposal Works

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Health Facilities

Retreat Centers (Art.11 § 25)

Church

WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)

Funeral Home
Hospital, Sanitarium, Philanthropic/Eleemosynary Institutions (except correctional institutions, animal 
hospitals)

WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)



Article Section Subd Page Change
Article 1 Section 7 Subd 3 2 Change "MN" to "Minnesota"
Article 2 Section 2 Subd 2 3 Remove "structures and" 
Article 2 Section 3 3 Add "Building" to section header

Article 2 Section 3 Subd 4 4 #2 remove "/approval"

Article 2 Section 4 Subd 1 4 Remove "chairman" and "and ratified by the Board" in the last sentence.

Article 2 Section 4 Subd 8 5

Fix this sentence "If a member has four (4) consecutive unexcused absences in any one year, the secretary shall certify this fact
to the Commission and the Commission shall notify the Couty Board shall appoint a replacement for the unexpired term, as if 
the member has resigned"  Add ", and the County Board" after "Commission shall notify the County Board" 

Article 2 Section 4 Subd 11 5 Remove "In January" and replace "each" with "the"

Article 2 Section 4 Subd 12 5 Capitalize "B" on Board in second sentence

Article 2 Section 5 Subd 9 6 Remove "in January"  

Article 3 Section 2 Subd 3 9 change "received" to "receives"

Article 3 Section 4 Subd 3 11 Move subd 3 above subd 2.  Switch numbers

Article 3 Section 9 12 Entire section should be a subd not a section; change to Subd 1 and fix the formatting

Article 4 fix margins on entire article

Article 4 Section 2 Subd 2 16 Remove "By the County Planning Commission" and replace with "for approval to the County Board"

Article 4 Section 3 Subd 3 16 replace "in passing on" to "recommending approval for a"

Article 4 Section 5 19 replace "decision" with "recommendation" (first sentence)

LIST OF PROPOSED "HOUSEKEEPING" CHANGES



Article 4 Section 5 19 add "and testimony" after "application" (first sentence)

Article 4 Section 5 19 Change "forward its recommendations" to "forward it to" (first sentence)

Article 4 Section 5 19 change "designate" to "recommend" (second sentence)

Article 4 Section 5 19 remove "require" (second sentence)

Article 4 Section 9 Subd 1 20 sentence 1, replace "begun" with "been resonably established"

Article 5 Section 2 Subd 2 21 D - remove "section 2, Subd. 95"

Article 5 Section 4 Subd 1 23 F - remove "section 2, Subd. 95"

Artcile 6 Section 1 Subd 6 25 Change "the County Zoning Administartion" (last sentence) to "Building Official"

Article 6 Section 1 Subd 7 25 Change "Section 1 through 8" to "Section 1 through 5"

Article 7 Section 1 Subd 1 27 Add "and County Board approved penalities"

Article 7 Section 2 27 add "or designess" after "the Zoning Administrator"

Article 8 29 combine this article with article 1, leave this article blank

Article 9 31 combine this article with article 1, leave this article blank

Article 11 Section 8 Subd 1 55 Add "or interim use permit" after "conditional use permit" in second sentence 

Article 11 Section 10 Subd 1 56 replace licensed to permitted



Article 11 Section 10 Subd 1 56 A - replace "for approval" with "as a part of a conditional use permit or a interim use permit application."

Article 11 Section 11 Subd 6 57 Replace "article 5" with "Article 7"

Article 11 Section 12 Subd 4 59 Header - replace "&" with "and"

Article 11 Section 18 66 Fix formatting

Article 11 Section 22 67 Fix formatting

Article 11 Section 22 Subd 4 68 Add "or interim use permit" after "conditional use permit"

Article 11 Section 22 Subd 7 68 Replace "approve" with "recommend approval"

Article 11 Section 24 Subd 1 70 change to "Agricultural operation as defined in Article 10"

Article 11 Section 28 Subd 1 75 in the second sentence add "as defined in Article 10" after "Evidence in the form of a site plan"

Article 11 Section 29 Subd 1 75 in the first sentence add "that" after "structures" and change "exceeding" to "exceed"

Article 11 Section 29 Subd 1 75 in the first sentence remove "as permitted uses"

Article 11 Section 29 Subd 1 75 in the first sentence replace "subject to approval of" to "required to obtain"

Article 11 Section 29 Subd 1 75 remove "(conditional and interim uses)"

Article 11 Section 29 Subd 2 76 Remove "section 5"  leave just as Article 4 in first sentence

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 1 77 remove "(Definitions)"



Article 11 Section 30 Subd 1 77 remove "subject to approval" (it is in there twice in the same sentence)

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 1 77 remove "(Conditional and Interim Uses)"

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 2 77 Remove "section 5"  leave just as Article 4

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 2 78 I - replace "added during Planning Advisory Commission and/or" with "approved by the"

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 2 78 I - remove "review"

Article 11 Section 30 Subd 2 78 I - replace "any approved" with "the"

Article 12 Section 4 Subd 1 82 remove "Subd. 6 of this section" as it's listed twice; also check section

Article 13 Check spacing and font/correct

Article 15 Section 6 110 replace section with "see article 2"

Article 16 111 Header add "/Campgrounds"

Article 16 Section 2 Subd 6 111 remove "shall be submitted for approval by the Zoning Administration"

Article 18 Section 2 Subd 22 128 correct formatting

Article 20 Section 1 147 Add "MXH, Mixed Use Hamlet"

Article 20 Section 4 147 remove "Commissioners or any administrative officer's"

Article 20 Section 6 148 Add "County" in front of "Board" 



Article 21 Section 2 149 add "zubject to zoning and building permits" after "permitted uses"

Article 21 Section 2 Subd 5 149 replace "not to exceed" with "less than"

Article 21 Section 2 Subd 9 149 remove "in accordance with Article 19 of this ordinance"

Article 21 Section 2 Subd 10 149 remove "subject to approval of a zoning permit by the zoning administration (see article 11, section 28)."

Article 21 Section 3 149 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 21 Section 3 149
remove "In the A-1, Agricultural Protection Distric, the following uses may be allowed subject to obtaining a conditional use 
permit in accordance with the provisions of Article 4 of this Ordinance"

Artcile 21 Section 3 Subd 19 150 remove "in accordance with Artcile 18 of this ordinance"

Article 21 Section 4 150 Capitalize O on Ordinance

Article 22 Section 2 153 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after  permitted uses

Article 22 Section 2 Subd 5 153 replace "not to exceed" with "less than"

Article 22 Section 2 Subd 8 153 remove "as regulated in Article 11 of this Ordinance"

Article 22 Section 2 Subd 9 153 remove "in accordance with Article 18 of this Ordinance"

Article 22 Section 2 Subd 10 153 remove "subject to approval of a zoning permit by the Zoning Administration (see Article 11, Section 28)

Article 22 Section 3 153
Remove "in the a-2, agricutlutre district, the following uses may be allowed subject to obtaining a conditional use permit in 
accordance with the provisions of article 4 of this ordinance"

Article 22 Section 3 153 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses



Article 22 Section 3 Subd 20 154 remove "as per article 18 of this ordinance"

Article 22 Section 3 Subd 21 154 remove "(as defined in article 10)."

Article 22 Section 3 Subd 22 154 remove "(see article 11, section 29)"

Article 22 Section 3 Subd 23 154 remove "subject to approavl of a zoning permit by the zoning administrator (see article 11, section 28)."

Article 23 Section 2 157 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after uses

Article 23 Section 2 Subd 4 157 replace "not to exceed" with "less than"

Article 23 Section 2 Subd 6 157 remove "as regulated in article 11 of this ordinance"

Article 23 Section 2 Subd 8 157 remove "in accordance with article 18 of this ordinance"

Article 23 Section 2 Subd 9 157 remove "subject to approval of a zoning permit by the zoning administration (see article 11, section 28)."

Artcile 23 Section 2 157 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 23 Section 3 Subd 2 158 remove "the location and size of which shall be determined by the Planning Advisory Commission."

Article 23 Section 3 Subd 7 158 remove "as regulated in article 11 of this ordinance"

Article 23 Section 3 subd 20 158 remove "in accordance with article 18 of this oridnance"

Article 23 Section 3 Subd 21 158 remove "((as defined in article 10)."

Article 23 Section 3 Subd 22 158 remove "(see article 11, section 29)."



Article 23 Section 3 Subd 23 158 remove "(see article 11, section 28)."

Article 23 Section 4 159
remove "accessory uses in the A-1 District shall include Agricutltural Related Uses as defined in Article 10 of this ordiance 
subject to performance standsards set forth in Article 11 of this Ordinance"

Article 24 Section 2 161 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after uses

Article 24 Section 2 161
remove "no building, structure or part thereof shall be erected, altered, used or moved upon any premises nor shall any land 
be used in whole or part for other than one or more of the following uses"

Article 24 Section 3 161 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 24 Section 3 Subd 6 161 remove "subject to Goodhue County Department of Health Regulations & Article 16

Article 25 Section 2 165 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after uses

Article 25 Section 2 Subd 5 165 remove "in accordance with Artcile 18 of this ordinance"

Article 25 Section 3 166
remove "in the b-1, general business distric, the following uses may be allowe subject to obtaining a conditional use permit in 
accordance with the provisions of article 4 of this ordianance"

Article 25 Section 3 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 25 Section 6 Subd 1 166 add "and Goodhue County SSTS ordinance" afterCounty Health Regulations

Article 26 Section 4 Subd 10 170 remove "in accordance with article 18 of this ordinance"

Article 27 Section 2 175
remove "in the b-2 highway business distric, no building, structure or part thereof shall be errected, altered, used or moved 
upon any premises nor shall any land be used in whole or part for other than one or more of the following issues"

Article 27 Section 2 Subd 6 175 remove "in accordance with article 18 of this ordinance"

Article 27 Section 2 175 Add "subject to zoning and building permits" after uses



Article 27 Section 3 176 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 27 Section 3 176
remove "In the B-2, Highway Business distric, the following uses may be allowed subject to obtaining a conditional use permit 
in accordance with the provisions of Article 4 of this Ordinance"

Article 27 Section 3 Subd 4 176 remove "in accordance with Article 18 of this ordiance."

Article 28 Section 2 179 add "subject to zoning and building permits" after uses

Article 28 Section 2
remove "in the I, Industry District, no building, structure or part thereof shall be erected, altered, used or moved upon any 
premises shall any land be used in whole or part for other than one or more of the following uses"

Article 28 Section 2 Subd 9 179 remove "in accordance with Article 18 of this ordinance"

Article 28 Section 3 179 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 28 Section 3 179
remove "in the I, Industry District, the following uses may be allowed subject to obtaining a conditional use permit in 
accordance with the provisions of Article 4 of this Ordinance."

Article 28 Section 3 Subd 13 180 remove "in accordance with Article 18 of this Ordinance."

Article 28 Section 4 Subd 1 180 Change "Subdivision 1, 2, and 3" to "Subdivision 1, 2, 3, 4 and 9"

Article 30 Section 3 189 Add "Subject to zoning and building permits" after interim uses

Article 31 Section 11 Subd 5 200 c-e - fix spacing issues

Article 31 Section 17 Subd 1 210 remove the extra 5


	PACPacket_Ryan_Oct2018
	Article_11_Section_26_Kennels
	ARTICLE-11_Section30.pdf
	SECTION 30.    NON-AGRICULTURAL USES ASSOCIATED WITH AGRICULTURAL TOURISM

	TableOfUses_AG&REZ_Only_Copy.pdf
	Sheet1

	Simple_Housekeeping_Changes.pdf
	Simple Changes 




